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PDS Sourcing Limited

Directors’ report

The directors are pleased to present their report together with the audited financial statements of PDS
Sourcing Limited (the “Company™) for the year ended 31 March 2023.

Principal activity

The principal activity of the Company is the holding of investments and of providing consultancy
services.

Results and dividend

The results for the year are shown on page 7.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the year under review (2022: USD
3,000,000).

Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of financial statements

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial period giving a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the Company. In preparing those financial statements, the directors are
required to:

®  sclect suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

m  make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

m  state whether Infernational Financial Reporting Standards have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

B prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that
the Company will continue in business.

The directors’ responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Going concern

The directors have made an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and
have no reason to believe that the business will not be a going concern on the year ahead.

Auditors

Our auditors, Lancasters Chartered Accountants have expressed their willingness to continue in office
for the next financial year end.

By order of the Board of Directors

mn/
J

Director Date:

o ]



Rogers Caopital

PDS Sourcing Limited

Secretary’s certificate
Jor the year ended 31 March 2023

Secretary’s certificate under Section 166 (d) of the Mauritius Companies Act 2001

In accordance with section 166 (d) of the Mauritius Companies Act 2001, we certify that to the best of
our knowledge and belief, the Company has filed with the Registrar of Companies, all such returns as
are required of the Company under the Mauritius Companies Act 2001.

For and on behalf of ROGERS CAPITAL CORPORATE SERVICES LIMITED
Company secretary

Rogers Capital Corporate Services Limited. Rogers House, 5 President John Kennedy Street, Port Louis, Mauritius | BRN

COB011019 | T:(230) 203 1100 www.rogerscapital.mu



st Lancasters

Chartered Accountanis

Auditor’s report to member of PDS Sourcing Limited
Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of PDS Sourcing Limited {the “Company”) set out on pages 7 to 38 which comprise
the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2023, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including significant accounting palicies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of, the financial position of the Company as at
31 March 2023, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards and comply with the Companies Act 2001.

Basis for Opinien

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing {ISAs]. Our respansibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Gompany in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants {IESBA Cade), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the IESBA Code. We helieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion,

DOther Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the Directors’ Report and the
Company Secretary's Certificate as required by the Companies Act 2001, but does not include the financial statements nor
our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial stalements dees nat caver the other infermation and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other infarmation is materially inconsistent with the financial statements ar our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated, )f, based on the work we have performed on the other
information obtained priar to the date of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to repart in this regard.

Responsthilities of the Directors for the Financisl Statements

The directors are respansible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the Companies Act 2001, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

2 GG

INDEPENDEMNT MEMBER
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s L.ancasters

Chartered Accountfants

Auditor's report to member of PDS Sourcing Limited (continued)
Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Statements {continued)

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability te continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicahle, matters related to going concern and using the going concern hasis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Campany or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditer's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our ohjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes aur opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high fevel af assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasanahly be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
hasis af these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our apinion. The risk of not detecting a materiat misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, fargery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

s Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but nat for the purpose of expressing an apinion an the effectivensss of the Company's internal
control,

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directars.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directar's use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in aur auditor’s report ta the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease Lo continue as a
going concern,

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, among ather matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

12 GGk

INDEPENDENT MERBER
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sse Lancasters

Chartered Accounicnts

Auditar’s report ta member of PDS Sulurcfng Limited (continued)

Other matter

This report is made solely for the Cempany's member, in accordance with Section 205 of the Companies Act 2001. Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state ta the Company's member those matters we are required to state ta them in
an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. Te the fullest extent permitted by law, we do nat accept or assume responsibility
to anyone other than the Company and the Company's member, for our audit work, for this report, or for the apinions we have
formed.

Aeport on Other Legal and Regulstory Reguirements

Mauritivs Companies Act 2001

We have no relationship with or interests in the Company other thar in our capacity as auditors and dealings in the ordinary
course of business.

We have obtained all the information and explanations we have required,

In aur epinien, proper accounting records have been kept by the Company as far as it appears fram our examination of those
records.

Lancasters, Pasram Bissessur
Chartered Accountants Licensed by FRC
14, Lancaster Court

Lavoguer Street

Port Louis

Mauritius

CA, ACA, MBA {UK)

Date: 09.05.2023

INDEPENDENT MEMBER
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PDS Sourcing Limited

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
Jor the year ended 31 March 2023

Note
Revenue
Revenue 7

Expenses

Consultancy fees
Recharge expenses
Depreciation

Professional fees

Audit and accounting fees
Bank charges
Administration charges
Licence fees
Disbursement

Profit from operating activities

Net finance income/ {costs) 8
Profit before taxation

Taxation 9
Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income for the year

The notes on pages 11 to 38 form part of these financial statements

2023 2022
USD USD
14,822,254 11,802,180
7,699,875 8,448,159
555,764 -
25,485 :
13,500 12,112
11,302 11,302
9,757 8,180
2,812 2,976
2,108 2,270
- 3,500
8,320,603 8,488,499
6,501,651 3,313,681
50,863 (25,098)
6,552,514 3,288,583
6,552,514 3,288,583
6,552,514

3,288,583




PDS Sourcing Limited

Statement of financial position

at 31 March 2023
2023 2022
USsDh Usb
Assets Note
Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries 10 17,020,450 3,747,770
Intangibles 11 891,992 -

17,912,442 3,747,770

Current assets

Other receivables 12 5,310,088 858,614
Cash and cash equivalents 169,681 459,272
Total current assets 5,479,769 1,317,886
Total assets 23,362.211 5,065,656
Equity
Stated capital 13 13,987,266 3,987,266
Revenue reserves 6,912,751 360,237
Total equity 20,900,017 4,347,503
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Other payables 14 2,492,194 718,153
Total current liabilities 2,492,194 718,153
Total equity and liabilities 23,392,211 5,065,656
Approved by the Board of Directors on ........cooooiiiiiiiii. and signed on its behalf by:

(M /]

Director o

The notes on pages 11 to 38 form part of these financial statements



PDS Sourcing Limited

Statement of changes in equity
Jor the year ended 31 March 2023

Balance as at 01 April 2021

Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the vear

Dividend paid
Balance as at 31 March 2022

Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year

Transaction with owners of the company
Issue of shares

Balance as at 31 March 2023

Stated
capital
Ush

3,987,266

3,987,266

10,000,000

13,987,266

Revenue
reserves
USD

71,654

3,288,583
(3,000,000)

360,237

6,552,514

6,912,751

Total
USD

4,058,920

3,288,583

(3,000,000)

4,347,503

6,552,514

10,000,000

20,900,017

The notes on pages 11 to 38 form part of these financial statements

9



PDS Sourcing Limited

Statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 March 2023

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before taxation

Adjustments for:

Dividend income
Loss on foreign exchange

Change in working capital

Change in other receivables

Change in other payables

Net cash (used in) / from operating activities
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of investments

Repayment of loan from subsidiary

Dividend received

Loan advance (to) / from subsidiary

Net cash (used in)/ from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities
Advance received from / paid to holding company
Dividend paid

Net cash from/ (used in) financing activities
Movement in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

The notes on pages 11 to 38 form part of these financial statements

10

2022
2023
USD USD
6,552,514 3,288,583
(5,986,678)  (3,154,193)
(23,638) 25,008
542,198 159,488
600,384 533,429
(1,951,631) (677,447)
(809,049) 15,470
(2,000,000 .
5 886,024
5,384,744 3,154,193
(4,426,285) 214,316
(1,041,341) 4,254,533
1,561,000 (900,000)
- (3,000,000)
1,561,000  (3,900,000)
(289,590) 370,003
459,272 89,269
169,681

459,272




PDS Sourcing Limited

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements
Jor the year ended 31 March 2023

1.

General information

The Company was incorporated as a private limited Company on 29 March 2006 and was granted a
Global Business Licence on 31 March 2006. The principal activity of the Company is the holding
of investments and of providing consultancy services. The Company registered office is C/o Rogers
Capital Corporate Services Limited, 3 Floor Rogers House, No.5, President John Kennedy Street,
Port Louis, Mauritius.

Basis of preparation

(@

(b)

(©

()

Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(“IASB”) and the Mauritius Companies Act. The Company is a sub subsidiary of PDS Limited
and has taken advantage of paragraph 4 of International Financial Reporting Standards (TFRS
10) - ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’, which dispenses it from the need to present
consolidated financial statements as its ultimate holding company is preparing consolidated
financial statements as per IFRS as issued by the IASB. The registered PDS Limited where the
consolidated financial statements are available is Unit No. 971, Solitaire Corporate Park
Andheri Ghatkopar Link Road, Andheri East, Mumbai 400093, Maharashtra, India.

Basis of measurement

These financial statements have been prepared under the going concern basis using the
historical cost convention, except for financial instruments which are carried at amortised cost.

Functional currency and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in United States Dollar (USD) which is the Company’s
functional currency and presentation currency.

Use of estimates and judgement

The preparation of these financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the Company’s accounting policies and
the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from

those estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates
are recognised prospectively.

11



PDS Sourcing Limited

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements
Jor the year ended 31 March 2023

2. Basis of preparation
(d) Use of estimates and judgement (continued)

Assumption and estimation uncertainties

Information about assumptions, estimation uncertainties and critical judgements in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment in
these financial statements are included in the relevant notes as follows:

= Recognition of deferred tax assets: availability of future taxable profit against which carry
forward tax losses can be used,

» Impairment test: key assumptions underlying recoverable amounts; and

= Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the
likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources.

Measurement of fair values

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of
fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market
data as far as possible, Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy
based on the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows:

= Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

* Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices).

= Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of
the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised in its entirety in the
same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire
measurenient.

3. Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)

New standards, interpretations and amendments issued during the year

There has been amendments and interpretations that have become effective for the current year.
The Company has adopted the following new interpretation during the year:

Annual Improvements to JFRS Standards 2018-2020

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - The amendment clarifies that for the purpose of performing the 10
per cent test” for derecognition of financial liabilities — in determining those fees paid net of fees
received, a borrower includes only fees paid or received between the borrower and the Iender,
including fees paid or received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s behalf.

12



PDS Sourcing Limited

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements
Jor the year ended 31 March 2023

3. Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
(continued)

Annual Tmprovements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 (continued)

The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 with
earlier application permitted.

The above new, amended standard and interpretation effective for the financial year do not have
any impact on the Company.

New standards, interpretations and amendments issued but not yet effective

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 April 2023 and have not been applied in preparing these financial
statements. Those which may be relevant to the Company are set out below. The Company does not
plan to adopt these standards early. These will be adopted in the period that they become mandatory
unless otherwise indicated:

Classification of liabilities as current or non-current (Amendments to IAS 1)

Under existing IAS 1 requirements, companies classify a liability as current when they do not have
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the end of
the reporting period. As part of its amendments, the Board has removed the requirement for a right
to be unconditional and instead, now requires that a right to defer settlement must have substance
and exist at the end of the reporting period.

There is limited guidance on how to determine whether a right has substance and the assessment
may require management to exercise interpretive judgement.

The amendments, as issued in 2020, aim to clarify the requirements on determining whether a
liability is current or non-current, and apply for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023. However, the IASB has subsequently proposed further amendments to IAS 1 and
the deferral of the effective date of the 2020 amendments to no earlier than 1 January 2024.

The directors are currently assessing the impact of this amendment on the financial statements and
do not expect any significant impact on the Company's financial statements.

13



PDS Scurcing Limited

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements
Jor the year ended 31 March 2023

3. Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)
(continued)

New standards, interpretations and amendments issued but not vet effective (continued)
Definition of accounting estimates (Amendments to JAS 8)

Distinguishing between accounting policies and accounting estimates is important because changes
in accounting policies are generally applied retrospectively, while changes in accounting estimates
are applied prospectively.

The changes to JAS 8 focus entirely on accounting estimates and clarify the following:

« The definition of a change in accounting estimates is replaced with a definition of accounting
estimates.

»  Under the new definition, accounting estimates are “monetary amounts in financial statements
that are subject to measurement uncertainty”.

« Entities develop accounting estimates if accounting policies require items in financial
statements to be measured in a way that involves measurement uncertainty.

« The Board clarified that a change in accounting estimate that results from new information or
new developments is not the correction of an error. In addition, the effects of a change in an
input or a measurement technique used to develop an accounting estimate arc changes in
accounting estimates if they do not result from the correction of prior period errors,

« A change in an accounting estimate may affect only the current period’s profit or loss, or the
profit or loss of both the current period and future periods. The effect of the change relating to
the current period is recognised as income or expense in the current period. The effect, if any,
on future periods is recognised as income or expense in those future periods.

The effects of changes in inputs and/or measurement techniques are changes in accounting
estimates. The definition of accounting policies remains unchanged.

The amendments are effective for periods beginning on or after 1 July 2023, with earlier application
permitted, and will apply prospectively to changes in accounting estimates and changes in
accounting policies occurring on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period in which
the company applies the amendments.

The directors are currently assessing the impact of this amendment on the financial statements and
do not expect any significant impact on the Company's financial statements.

14



PDS Sourcing Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 December 2022

Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs){continued)

New standards, interpretations and amendments issued but not yet effective (continued)

Disclosure Initiative: Accounting Policies (Amendments to TAS 1 and IFRS Practice
Statement 2)

The Board has issued amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and an update to
IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements to help companies provide useful
accounting policy disclosures. The key amendments to TAS 1 include:

»  requiring companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant
accounting policies;

« several paragraphs are added to explain how an entity can identify material accounting policy
information and to give examples of when accounting policy information is likely to be
material,;

« clarifying that accounting policies related to immaterial transactions, other events or conditions
are themselves immaterial and as such need not be disclosed; clarifying that not all accounting
policies that relate to material transactions, other events or conditions are themselves material
to a company’s financial statements;

« accounting policy information may be material because of its nature, even if the related
amounts are immaterial;

+  accounting policy information is material if users of an entity’s financial statements would need
it to understand other material information in the financial statements; and

» the amendments clarify that if an entity discloses immaterial accounting policy information,
such information shall not obscure material accounting policy information.

The Board also amended IFRS Practice Statement 2 to include guidance and two additional
examples on the application of materjality to accounting policy disclosures. The amendments are
consistent with the refined definition of material. The amendments are effective from 1 July 2023
but may be applied earlier. The directors are currently assessing the impact of this amendment on
the financial statements and do not expect any significant impact on the Company's financial
statements.

15



PDS Sourcing Limited

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023

4. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The Company makes estimates and judgements that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next year. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Determination of functional currency

The determination of the functional currency of the Company is critical since recording of
transactions and exchange differences arising therefrom are dependent on the functional currency
selected. The directors have considered those factors and have determined that the functional
currency of the Company is the USD.

Going concern

The Company’s management have made an assessment on the ability of the Company to continue
as going concern in the light of the COVID-19 pandemic (“pandemic™) and is satisfied that the
Company has the adequate resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future.
Furthermore, the management is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant
doubt due to the pandemic upon the ability of the Company to continue as going concern.
Therefore, the financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis.

5. Signpificant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in
these financial statements:

(a) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currencies of the
company at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated in the functional
currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Foreign currency
differences are generally recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured
based on historical cost in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of
transaction.

(b} Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised as follows:
»  Marketing and consultancy income are accounted for as it accrues

(c) Finance income and finance costs -
The Company’s net finance income includes interest income and foreign exchange differences.

16



PDS Sourcing Limited

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023

5. Significant accounting policies (continued)
{d} Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items directly in equity or in OCL

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year and any
adjustment to the tax payable in respect of previous years. It is measured using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Current tax also includes any tax arising
from dividends.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain criteria are met.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation
purposes.

Deferred tax is not recognised:

= temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is
not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss;

* temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
arrangements to the extent that the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable
future; and

* taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax asscts are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which they can be used. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised;
such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
they can be used.

Deferred tax is measured ai the tax rates that are expected to be applied fo temporary
differences when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting
date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offsef only if certain criteria are met.

17



PDS Sourcing Limited

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023

5. Significant accounting poelicies (continued)
(e) Imvestment in subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. The Company controls an entity when it is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity.

Investment in subsidiaries are shown at cost and provision for impairment is only made where,
in opinion of the directors, there is a diminution in value which is other than temporary. Where
there has been such a diminution in value of an investment, it is recognised as an expense in the
year in which the diminution is identified.

On disposal of an investment, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount is charged or credited to the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income,

(f} Financial instruments

Recognition and initial measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at
FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost or FVTPL.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company
changes its business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial
assets are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the
business model.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and
is not designated as at FVTPL:

e It is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and

e its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost include other receivables and cash and cash
equivalents.

18



PDS Sourcing Limited
Notes to and forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023
5. Significant accounting policies (continued)
() Financial instruments (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets - Business model assessment:

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial
asset is held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and
information is provided to management. The information considered includes:

- the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in
practice. These include whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual
interest income, maintain a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the
financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or
realizing cash flows through the sale of the assets;

- how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s
management;

- the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held
within that business model) and how these risks are managed;

- how managers of the business are compensated — ¢.g., whether compensation is based on

the fair value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on
a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets - Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal
and interest:

For the purposes of this assessment, 'principal' is defined as the fair value of the financial asset
on inifial recognition. 'Tnterest' is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for
the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of
time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g., iquidity risk and administrative costs), as
well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest,
the Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether
the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of
contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment,
the Company considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable-rate features;

- prepayment and extension features; and

- terms that limit the Company's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g., non-recourse
features).
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Jfor the year ended 31 March 2023

5. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(f} Financial instruments (continued)

Classification and subsequeni measurement {continued)

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if
the prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, which may include reasonable compensation for early
termination of the contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a discount or premium
to its contractual par amount, a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that
substantially represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual
interest (which may also include reasonable compensation for carly termination) is treated as
copsistent with this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial
recognition.

Financial assets — Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at | Thesc assets are subscquently measured at fair value. Net gains and
FVTPL losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial assets at | These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
amortised cost effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment
losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is recognised in profit orloss. A
Debt investments at | These asscts are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income
FVOC(Cl calculated using the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains
and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other net
gains and losses are recognised in OCIL. On derecognition, gains and
losses accumulated in QCT are reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity investments | These assets arc subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
at FYOCI recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly
represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net
gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are never reclassified to
profit or loss.

Financial liabilities — Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability
is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is
designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair
value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss.
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.
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for the year ended 31 March 2023

5. Signoificant accounting policies (continued)

1

(&

(B

Financial instruments (continued)

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement
of financial position when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable
right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Share capital
Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified in equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
ordinary shares, net of any tax effects, are recognised as a deduction from equity.

Impairment

Non-derivative financial assets

The Company recognises loss allowances for ECLs on:
- financial assets measured at amortised cost;

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the
following, which are measured at 12-month ECLs:

- bank balances for which credit risk (i.e., the risk of default occurring over the expected life
of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company's
historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking
information.
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5. Significant accounting policies (continued)
(h) Impairment (continued)

Non-derivative financial assets (continued)

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:

- the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without
recourse by the Company to actions such as realising security {if any is held); or
- the financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

The Company considers a debt sccurity to have low credit risk when its credit risk rating is
equivalent to the globally understood definition of 'investment grade’. The Company considers
this to be Baa3 or higher per (Rating Agency X) or BBB- or higher per (Rating Agency Y).

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of
a financial instrument.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within
the 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument
is less than 12 months).

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period
over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.
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Notes to and forming part of the financial statements
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5. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(h) Impairment (continued)

Non-derivative financial assets (continued)
Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e., the difference between the cash flows due to the entity
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset.

Financial assets not classified as fair value through profit or loss, including an interest in an
equity-accounted investee, are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment.

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired includes:

= default or delinquency by a debtor;

= restructuring of an amount due to the Company on terms that the Company would not
consider otherwise;

* indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy;

= adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers;

= the disappearance of an active market for a security; or

= observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the expected cash flows
from a group of financial assets

For an investment in an equily sccurity, objective evidence of iropairment includes a significant
or prolonged decline in its fair value below its cost. The Company considers a decline of 20%
io be significant and a period of nine months to be prolonged.

Expenses

All expenses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss and comprehensive income on
an accrual basis.

(j) Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of a past event, the Company have a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.
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Notes to and forming part of the financial statements
Jor the vear ended 31 March 2023

6. Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management

fa) Accounting classifications and fair value

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy. It does not include fair value
information for financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying

amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

Carrying amounts

Other
31 March 2023 financial
Amortised cost liabilities Total
USDh USD USD
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Other receivables 5,309,198 - 5,309,198
Cash and cash equivalents 169,681 - 169,681
5478879 - 5,478,879
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Other payables - 2,492,194 2,492,194
- 2,492,194 2,492,194
Carrying amounts
Other
31 March 2022 financial
Amortised cost liabilities Total
USDh UusDh USD
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Other receivables 756,346 - 756,346
Cash and cash equivalents 459,272 - 459,272
1,215,618 - 1,215,618
Financial liabilities not measured at fair
value
Other payables - 718,153 718,153
- 718,153 718,153




PDS Sourcing Limited

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023

6. Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (continued)

(b) Financial visk management

Introduction and preview

Financial instruments carried on the statement of financial position include other receivables,
cash and cash equivalents, other payables. The recognition method adopted is disclosed in the
individual policy statement associated with each item. The most important types of risk are
market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Company’s activities expose them to a variety of financial risks and those activities involve
the analysis, evaluation, acceptance and management of some degree of risk or combination of
risks. The Company’s aims are therefore to achieve an appropriate balance between risk and
return and minimise potential adverse effects on the Company’s financial performance.

The Company’s risk management policies are designed to identify and analyse these risks, to
set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor the risks and adherence to limits by
means of reliable and up-to-date information systems. The Comparny regularly reviews their
risk management policies and systems to reflect changes in markets and emerging best practice.

Risk management is carried out by the Board of directors through board meetings. The
Company provide principles for overall risk management.

Overview
The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

= Market risk
= Credit risk
= Liquidity risk

Marker risk

Market risk represents the potential loss that can be caused by a change in the market value of
financial instruments. The Company’s exposure to market risk is determined by a number of
factors, including interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates and market volatility. The
Company conducts its investment operations in a manner that seeks to exploit the potential
gains in the market, while limiting its exposure to market declines.

(i) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Company has no significant exposure to interest rate risk.
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6. Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (continued)
(b) Financial risk management (continued)
(i) Currency risk
The Company has certain financial instruments denominated in GBP. Consequently, the
Company is exposed to the risk that the exchange rate of the USD relative to GBP may change

in a manner, which has a material effect on the reported values of the Company’s asscts and
liabilities, which are denominated in USD.

Currency profile
Financial Financial Financial Financial
assets liabilities assets liabilities
2023 2023 2022 2022
USsDh USD UsDh USD
UsD 1,713,437 2,492,194 889,023 718,153
GBP 3,765,442 - 326,595
5,478,879 2,492,194 1,215,618 718,153
Sensitivity Analysis:

A 10 % strengthening of USD against the GBP at 31% March 2023 would have increased net
profit before tax by USD 376,544 (2022: USD 32,660) This analysis assumes that all other
variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same

basis as in 2022.

2023 2022
Currency USD USD
GRP 376,544 32,660

Similarly, a 10% weakening of the USD against the GBP at 31 March 2023 would have had the
exact reverse effect.
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6. Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (continued)
(b) Financial risk management (continued)
Credit risk

Credit risk represents the potential loss that the Company would incur if counter parties fail to
perform pursuant to the terms of their obligations to the Company. The Company limits its
credit risk by carrying out transactions through companies within the group. At the reporting
date, there was no significant concentration of credit risk. The maximum exposure to credit
risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the statement of financial
position.

Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The
maximum credit risk at the reporting date was:

2023 2022
UsD USD
Other receivables 5,309,198 756,346
Cash and cash equivalents 169,681 459,272

5,478,879 1,215,618

Expected credit loss assessment
(i) Other receivables

The Company applies the simplified approach to measuring expected credit losses, as permitted
by IFRS 9, which uses a 12-month expected loss allowance for all other receivables.

The expected credit loss on other receivables was deemed by management to be not material
and therefore no impairment allowances were accounted for.

(ii) Cash and cash equivalents

The Company held cash and cash equivalents of USD 169,681 at 31 March 2023 (2022: USD
459,272). The cash and cash equivalents are held with banks with international repute and
having strong track record in the banking industry.

Impairment on cash and cash equivalents has been measured on a 12-month expected loss basis
and reflects the short maturities of the exposures. The Company considers that its cash and cash

equivalents have low credit risk based on the external credit ratings of the counterparties.

The expected credit loss on cash and cash equivalents was deemed by management to be not
material and therefore no impairment allowances were accounted for.
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6. Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (continued)

(b) Financial risk management (continued)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as
they fall duc. The Company’s approach to manage liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible that
it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and
stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damages to the Company’s

reputation.

31 March 2023
Financial liabilities
Other payables

31 March 2022
Financial liabilities
Other payables

7. Revenue

Revenue consists of*

Consultancy income
Marketing income
Dividend income

28

Within one One to
year five years Total
USD USD USD
2,492,194 - 2,492,194
718,153 - 718,153
2023 2022
USD UsD
6,793,074 6,379,313
2,042,502 2,268,675
5,986,678 3,154,192

14,822,254
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Notes to and forming part of the financial statements
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8. Net finance income/ (costs)

2023 2022
USD UspD
Finance income:
Unrealised exchange gain 235,355 41,656
Realised exchange gain 11,151 310
Interest income 27,225 -
273,731 41,966
Finance costs:
Unrealised exchange loss 243,663 (66,610)
Realised exchange loss (20,795) (454)
(222,868) (67,064)
Net finance income/ (costs) 50,863 (25,098)

Taxation

The Company holds a Global Business Licence for the purpose of the Financial Services Act 2007
of Mauritius. The Company is liable to tax at the rate of 15% on all its income. Pursuant to the
enactment of the Finance Act 2018, with effect since 01 January 2019, the deemed foreign tax
credit has phased out since 01 July 2021. Any income derived prior 30 June 2021, will still be
entitled to deemed foreign tax credit of 80% or actual foreign tax credit, whichever is the higher,
Any income derived after 30 June 2021 will be subject to tax at the rate of 15% and would be
entitled to either:

(a) a foreign tax credit equivalent to the actual foreign tax suffered on its foreign income against the
Company’s tax liability arising in Mauritius on such income, or

(b) a partial exemption of 80% applicable to specified income, including but not limited to foreign-
source dividends or interest income, subject to the Company meeting the necessary substance
requirements,

Further, the Company is exempted from income tax in Mauritius on profits or gains arising from the
sale of securities. In addition, there is no withholding tax payable in Mauritius in respect of
payments of dividends to shareholders or in respect of redemptions or exchanges of shares.

A reconciliation of the actual income tax based on accounting profit and the actual income tax
expense is as follows:

Total tax expense for the year:

A reconciliation of the actual income tax expense based on accounting loss and actual income tax
expense is as follows:
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9.

10.

Taxation (continued)

Total tax expense for the year:

Current year tax expenses

Profit before tax

Income tax at 15%
Non-allowable expenses
Non-taxable income

Tax loss utilised during the year
Underlying tax suffered

Current year tax expemnses

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments consist of unquoted shares

Cost
At 01 April
Acquisition during the year

As at 31 March
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2023 2022
USD USD

2023 2022

USD USD
6,552,514 3,288,583
982,893 493,287
220,901 212,136
(35,142) (6,248)
: (33,921)
(1,168,652) (665,254)
2023 2022

USD USD
3,747,770 2,598,488
13,272,680 1,149,282
17,020,450 3,747,770
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10. Investments in subsidiaries (continued)

11

.

Narme of company

Poeticgem Limited
Poetic Brands Limited
Design Arc UK Limited

PDS Fashions Limited (previously
known as PDS Vogue Limited)
Spring Design London Limited

PDS Smart Fabric Tech Limited
PDS Fashions Hong Kong Limited
Poeticgem International Limited
PG Group

PDS Fashion USA Limited

FX Import Company Ltd

Poctic Knitwear Limited

Pacific Logistics Limited

Zamira Fashion Limited

Techno Design HK (Prev DPOD)
PDS Asia Star Corporation Limited HK
Simple Approach (Ord Shares)
Simple Approach (Pref Shares)
Grupo Sourcing Limited

Number of
shares

825,000

1
2,000,000
10,000
9,983
1,000,000
3,199,800
10,000
100
10,000
167,500
55,000
120,000
212,500
1,990,000
51,000

% held

Country of
incorporation

United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom
United Kingdom

United Kingdom
Hong Kong
Hong Kong
Hong Kong
Hong Kong
Hong Kong

United Kingdom

United Kingdom

United Kingdom
Hong Kong
Hong Kong
Hong Kong
Hong Kong
Hong Kong
Hong Kong

At the reporting date, the directors have reviewed the carrying amounts of the investments in
subsidiaries and considered that no provision for impairment is required for the year under review.

Intangibles

At 01 April
Addition during the year
Depreciation during the year

As at 31 March

The company is implementing an IT development project.
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2023 2022
USD USD
917,477 .
(25,455) ;
891,992 :




PDS Sourcing Limited

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements
Jor the year ended 31 March 2023

12.

13.

14.

15.

Other receivables

2023 2022
UsSD UsD
Unsecured, interest free loan/ advances and repayable on demand 278,627 272,775
Secured, interest bearing loan 3,739,327 -
Non-trade receivables 1,291,244 483 571
Prepayments 890 102,268
5,310,088 858,614

Stated capital
2022 2021
USD USD

13,987,266 ordinary shares of USD 1 each 13,987,266 3,987,266

All shares in issue are fully paid up. The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends
as declared from time to time and are entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company.

Other payables
2023 2021
USD USD
Non-trade payables and accrued expenses 2,492,194 718,153

Related party transactions
Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions or if they are

subject to comimon control.

One director of the Company is deemed to have beneficial interests in the Administration
Agreement between the Company, the Administrator and Sccretary.

During the year under review, the Company entered into the following related party transactions:
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15. Related party transactions (continued)

Transactions during the year. Nature:
2023 2022
USD USD
Mul!:lnatlonal Textiles Group Advance received ) 69,665
Limited
M‘uIFmatlonal Textiles Group Advance advance / paid 611,042 (69,665)
Limited
M.ulFmatlonal Textiles Group Dividend payable ) 3,000,000
Limited
Multinational Textiles Group - .
Limited Dividend paid - (3,000,000)
Mul‘f;matmnal Textiles Group Amount advanced to ) 900,000
Limited
Multinational Textiles Group .
Limited Amount repaid - {223,000)
Multinational Textiles Group Transfer of shares
Limited (Investments) ) (L;158,259)
PDS Vogue Limited Investments - 1,083,431
Investments liaibility
PDS Vogue Limited transfer to holding i (1,083,431)
company
. . A= Exchange difference on
Spring Design Limited retranslation - (9,449)
Spring Design Limited Loan advanced to - 214,316
Pocticgem International Limited  Dividend receivable - 3,036,000
Poeticgem International Limited  Dividend received B (3,036,000}
Poetic Brands Limited Amount receivable 335,631 (15,889)
Poetic Brands Limited Amount received - (886,024)
Norwest Industries Limited Amount accrued 1,053,649 1,325,902
Norwest Industries Limited Amount received 991,494 (1,543,473)
Simple Approach Limited Amount accrued 693,415 656,079
Simple Approach Limited Dividend accrued 2,000,000 -
Simple Approach Limited Amount received 2,695,297 (743,977}
PG Group Limited Amount accrued 301,357 311,060
PG Group Limited Amount received 301,357 (418,515)
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15. Related party transactions (continued)

Transactions during the year:

PG Home Group Limited
PG Hotne Group Limited
Styleberry Limited
Styleberry Limited

Progress Manufacturing Group

Limited

Progress Manufacturing Group

Limited

Grupo Sourcing Limited
Grupo Sourcing Limited
Twins Asia Limited

Twins Asia Limited

PDS Asia Star Corp Limited
PDS Asia Star Corp Limited
PDS Asia Star Corp Limited
Fareast Vogue Limited
Fareast Vogue Limited

Green Apparel Industries Limited
Green Apparel Industries Limited
Poeticgem International Limited
Poeticgem International Limited

Krayons Sourcing Limited
Krayons Sourcing Limited
Zamira Fashions Limited

Nature:

Amount accrued
Amount received
Amount accrued
Amount received

Amount accrued

Amount received
Amount accrued
Amount received
Amount accrued
Amount received
Amount accrued
Dividend accrued
Amount received
Amount accrued
Amount received
Amount accrued
Amount received
Amount accrued
Amount received
Amount accrued
Amount received
Amount accrued
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2023
USD

36,900
36,900
532,801
528,704

498,304

468,359
49,200
50,100

330,138
330,138
344,795
390,000
394,296
79,420
79,420
365,037
392,361
1,532,560
1,511,230
580,159
456,505
286,765

2022
uUsh

36,900
(39,900)
327,428

(367,147)

394,733

(501,603)
49,200
(48,000)
552,068
(578,675)
801,585

(752,084)
68,043
(73,500)
501,625
(580,476)
1,621,472
(1,692,347)
388,186
(440,636)
268,854
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15. Related party transactions (continued)

Transactions during the year:

Zamira Fashions Limited
Blueprint Design Limited
Blueprint Design Limited
360 Degree Notch Limited
360 Degree Notch Limited
Clover Collections Limited
Clover Collections Limited
FX Import HK Limited

FX Import HK Limited
Design Arc Asia

Design Arc Asia

Techno Design HK
Techno Design HK

PDS Far East Limited

PDS Far East Limited
Rogers Capital Corporate
Services Limited

Rogers Capital Corporate
Services Limited

Poeticgem Ltd
Poeticgem Lid

PDS Fashion Ltd

PDS Fashion Ltd
Spring Design Limited
Pacific Logistics
Pacific Logistics
Poetic Knitwear
Poetic Knitwear

Nature:

Amount received
Amount accrued

Amount received
Amount accrued
Amount received
Amount accrued
Amount received
Amount accrued
Amount received
Amount accrued
Amount received
Amount accrued
Amount received
Amount accrued

Amount received
Administrator fees
accrued

Administrator fees paid

Dividend accrued
Amount received
Recharge expense
Amount grmated
Amount receivable
Amount accrued
Amount received
Amount accrued
Amount received
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2023
USD

290,793

73,989
81,339
1,031,990
1,018,729
1,396
(886,337)
898,134
880,776
228,593
239,198

-

3,261,047
(3,261,047)
531,374
1,809,318

(192,858).

538
(490,568)
902
(878,715)

2022
Usbh

(276,958)

106,600
(116,250)
706,401
(721,597)

412,168
(533,025)
190,108
(202,743)
28,866
(34,866)

13,034

(33,434)
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15. Related party transactions (coniinued)

Balances outstanding at 31
March:

Multinational Textiles Group
Limited

Poectic Brands Limited
Spring Design Limnited
Spring Design Limited
Norwest Industries Limited
Simple Approach

PG Group Limited

PG Home Group Limited
Styleberry Limited

Progress Manufacturing Group
Limited

Grupo Sourcing Limited
Twins Asia Limited

PDS Asia Star Corp Limited

Fareast Vogue Ltd

Green Apparel Industries Limited
Poeticgem International Limited

Krayons Sourcing Limited
Zamira Fashions Limited
Blueprint Design Limited
360 Degree Notch Limited
Clover Collections Limited
FX Import HK Limited
Design Arc Asia

Techno Design HK

PDS Far East Limited
Rogers Capital Corporate
Services Limited

PDS Fashion Ltd
Pacific Logistics
Poctic Knitwear

Amount Payable

Amount receivable
Amount receivable
Loan receivable

Amount receivable
Amount receivable
Amount receivable
Amount receivable
Amount receivable

Amount receivable
Amount receivable
Amount receivable
Amount receivable
Amount receivable
Amount receivable
Amount receivable
Amount receivable
Amount receivable
Amount receivable
Amount receivable
Amount receivable
Amount receivable
Amount receivable
Amount receivable
Amount receivable
Administration fees
payable

Amount receivable
Amount receivable
Amount receivable

2023
UsD

677,753
335,631
194,054
62,155
37,063

4,097

26,844
12,300

390,000
6,473
168,625
97,404
15,396

61,148
887,733
43,539

1,277,944
491,106
879,617

2022
usD

66,711
1,196
204,367

38,945

3,101
13,200
49,501

543
33,797
147,295
26,250
19,425

7,350
47,887
26,181
10,605
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16.

Capital management

+ The Company’s primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability

17.

18.

to continue as a going concern. As the Company is part of a larger group, the Company’s sources
of additional capital and policies for distribution of excess capital may also be affected by the
group’s capital management objectives.

The Company defines “capital” as including all components of equity. Trading balances that arise
as a result of trading transactions with other group Companies are not regarded by the Company as
capital.

The Company’s capital structure is regularly reviewed and managed with due regard to the capital
management practices of the group to which the Company belongs. Adjustments are made to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions affecting the Company or the group.
The resulis of the directors’ review of the Company’s capital structure are used as a basis for the
determination of the level of dividends, if any, that are declared.

Holding and ultimate holding company

The Company is a sub subsidiary of PDS Limited, a Company incorporated in Maharashtra, India.
The ultimate holding Company is PDS Limited, a company incorporated in India with its shares
listed on The National Stock Exchange of India Limited and Bombay Stock Exchange.

Going Concern, Impact Of Covid-19 And Ukrainian — Russian War
Impact of Ukrainian - Russian war

On 24 February 2022, the Russian Federation launched a full-scale invasion into Ukraine sovereign
state. The potential impacts from the emerging Ukraine and Russian conflict remain uncertain,
including but not limited to, on global economic conditions, asset valualions, inlerest rate
expectations and exchange rates. Although the extent of these impacts has not been assessed at this
stage, currently there is no direct impact on the Company as the Company does not have any
transactions with both Ukraine and Russia.

Going Concern

The Company incurred a profit of USD 6,552,514 (2022: USD 3,288,583) for the vear ended 31
March 2023. As at that date, the Company had net assets of USD 20,900,017 (2022:USD
4,347,503) with its total current assets exceeding its total current liabilities by USD 2,987,575
(2022: USD 599,733).

The directors have made an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern
taking into account all available information about the future including the analysis of the possible
impacts in relation to COVID-19 and Ukraine Russian War, which is at least, but is not limited fo,
twelve months from the date of approval of these financial statements and confirm that they have
not identified events or condifions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.
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19. Events after the reporting date

There has been no significant event after the reporting date which in the opinion of the board of
directors requires disclosure in the financial statements.
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PDS Ventures Limited
Directors’ report

The directors are pleased to present their report together with the audited financial statements of PDS
Ventures Limited (the “Company™) for the year ended 31 March 2023.

Principal activity

The principal activity of the Company is the holding of investments,

Results and dividend

The results for the year are shown on page 7.

The directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the year under review (2022: Nil).

Statement of directors’ responsibilities in respect of financial statements

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial period giving a
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the Company. In preparing those financial Statements, the directors are
required to;

B sclect suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

® make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

W state whether International Financial Reporting Standards have been followed, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

B prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that
the Company will continue in business.

The directors’ responsibility includes: designing, implementing and maintaining internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies and
making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances,

Going Concern

The directors have made an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern and
have no reason to believe that the business will not be a going concern on the year ahead.

Auditors

The auditors, Lancasters Chartered Accountants, have expressed their willingness to continue in office
until the next Annual Meeting.

By order of the Board of Directors

.

irecto Date: [ 9 MAY 2023



Rogers Caopital

PDS Ventures Limited

Secretary’s certificate
Jor the year ended 31 March 2023

Secretary’s certificate under Section 166 (d) of the Mauritius Companies Act 2001
In accordance with section 166 (d) of the Mauritius Companies Act 2001, we certify that to the best of

our knowledge and belief, the Company has filed with the Registrar of Companies, all such returns as
are required of the Company under the Mauritius Companies Act 2001 .

Y ,:" e ""“--\}
Fm‘)\béhalf of ROGERS CAPITAL CORPORATE SERVICES LIMITED
Company secretary

Rogers Capital Corporate Services Limited, Rogers House, 5 President John Kennedy Street, Port Louis, Mauritius | BRN
CO8011019 | T: (230) 203 1100 www.rogerscapital.mu




s Lancasters

Chartered Accountants

Auditor's report to member of PDS Ventures Limited
Ooinion

We have audited the financial statements of PDS Ventures Limited (the “Company*) set out on pages 7 to 34 which
comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2023, and the statemeni of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the period then ended, and notes 1q
the financial statements, including significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a trug and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at
31 March 2023, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reparting Standards and comply with the Companies Act 2001,

Basis for Opinfon

We conducted our audit in accardance with International Standards on Auditing {ISAs). Our responsibilities under thase
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsihilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
repart, We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’
Code of Ethics for Professignal Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsihilities in
accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other informatign comprises the Directors’ Report and the
Company Secretary's Certificate ag required by the Companies Act 2001, but does net include the financial statements nar
our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion an the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do noi expiess any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing s,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial Statements of our knawledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materiglly misstated. If, based on the wark we have performed on the ather
information abtained prior te the date of this auditor's report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

INDEPENDENT MEMBER

4|Page



Lancasters

Chartered Accountanis

Auditar's report to member of PDS Ventures Limited (centinued)

Responsibilities of the Directors Tor the Financial Statements

in preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Company
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going congern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directars either intend tg liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but ta do so.

Auditor’s Responsibilitias for the Audlt of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whather the financial statements as g whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issua an auditer's report that includes gur opinion. Reasonable

f assurance, hut is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always
defect a material misstatement when it exjsts, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are cansidered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably he expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
hasis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We alsq:

* Mentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
one resulting from error, as fraud may involyve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal cantrol,

¢ QOhtain an understanding of internal contral relevant to the audit in order to design avdit procedures that are appropriate

in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of eXpressing an opinion on the effectivenass of the Company’s internal
control.

INDEPENDIENT MEMBER

S|Pasge



s Lancasters

Chartered Accountants

Auditor's report to member of PDS Ventures Limited {continued)

Auditor's Resgonsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements {continued!

* Conclude on the apprepriateness of the director's use of the going concem basis of accounting and based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related ta events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attentfon in our auditor's report 1o the related disclasures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to madify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit evidence ohtained up to the
date of our auditar's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continve as a
going concern,

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statemants, inchuding the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in 8 manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the directors regarding, ameng other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant avdit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit,

Other matter

This report is made solely for the Company's member, in accordance with Section 205 of the Companies Act 2001, Our audit
work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company

§ repart and for no ather purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept ar assume responsibility
to anyone other than the Company and the Company's member, for aur audit wark, for this report, or for the opinions wa have
formed.,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Reguirements
Mauritivs Companies Act 2001

We have no relationship with or interests in the Company other than in our capacity as awditors and dealings in the ordinary
course of husiness.

We have obtained all the information and explanations we have required.

In aur epinian, proper accounting records have been kept by the Company as far as it appears from our examination of those
records.

—,

N
/
Lancasters, Pasram EF ssur FUCA, AGA, MBA (UK)

Chartered Accountants Ligensed by FRC'
14, Lancaster Court

Lavoguer Street

Port Louis

Mauritius,

Date: 09.05.2023

INDEPENDENT MEMBER
6lPage



PDS Ventures Limited

Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive inconte
Jor the year ended 31 March 2023

Note
Revenue 7
Expenses
Audit and accounting fees
Professional fees
Administration charges

Licence fees
Bank charges

Loss from operations
Net finance income / (costs) 8

Impairment of loan receivable

Loss before taxation
Taxation 9
Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive loss for the year

The notes on pages 11 to 34 form part of these financial statements

2022
UsD

(26,487)

(26,487)

(26,487)




PDS Ventures Limited

Statement of financial position
as at 31 March 2023

Assets
Non-current asset
Investment in joint venture
Investment in subsidiary
Deposit on shares

Total Non-current assets
Current assets
Other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Total current assets

Total assets

Equity

Stated capital

Share application monies
Revenue deficit

Total equity

Liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Advance from holding company
Current liabilities

Other payables

Advance from holding company

Total current liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

....................

Director

The notes on pages 11 to 34 form part of these financial statements

Note

10
11
12

13

14
15

16(a)

17
16(b)

...........................

2023
USD

22,860,000

22,860,000

345,385
2,568

23,207,953

16,000,000

7,850,000
(1,265,911)

..............

11,799
612,065

--------------

..............................

irector

2022
usD

10,000
17,250,000

4,997

1,000,000

(1,248,377)

13,405

..............



PDS Ventures Limited

Statement of changes in equity

Jor the year ended 31 March 2023

Balance as at 01 April 2021

Total comprehensive income
for the year

Loss for the year

Balance as at 01 April 2022

Transactions with owner of
the Company
Issue of shares

Movement during the year

Total comprehensive income
for the year
Loss for the year

Balance as at 31 March 2023

Stated Stated
Capital capital Share
(Ordinary (Preference application
shares) shares) monics
USD USD USD
1,000,000 - -
1,000,000 - -
- 15,000,000 -
- - 7,850,000
1,000,000 15,000,000 7,850,000

Retained Total
earnings equity
USD USD

(1,221,890)  (221,890)

(26,487) (26,487
(1,248,377)  (248,377)
- 15,000,000

- 7,850,000

(17,534) (17,534

(1,265,911) 22,584,089

The notes on pages 11 to 34 form part of these financial statements




PDS Ventures Limited

Statement of cash flows
Jor the year ended 31 March 2023

2023 2022
USD Usnh
Cash flows from operating activities
Loss before taxation (17,5349) (26,487)
Adjustments for:
Interest expense - 1,785
Interest income - (1,712)
Impairment of loan receivable - 8,434
(17,539 (17,980)
Change in working capital-
Change in other receivable 1,711 -
Change in other payables (1,606) 3,127
Net cash used in operating activities {17,429) (14,853)
Cash flows from financing activities
Loan from holding Company 5,615,000 17,275,600
Cash flows from Investing activities
Acquisition of investment - (10,000)
Deposit on shares (3,600,000)  (17,250,000)
Net cash used in investing activities (5,600,000) ( 17,260,000)
Movement in cash and cash equivalents (2,429) 147
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 4,997 4,850
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 2,568 4,997

The notes on pages 11 to 34 form part of these financial statements

10



PDS Ventures Limited

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements
Jor the year ended 3] March 2023

1.

General information

The Company’s registered office is C/o Rogers Capital Corporate Services Limited, 3" Floor
Rogers House, No.5, President John Kennedy Street, Port Louis, Republic of Mauritius.

Basis of preparation
(a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financia]
Reporting Standards (“IFRS™) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(“IASB”) and the Mauritius Companies Act. The Company is a sub subsidiary of PDS Limited
and has taken advantage of paragraph 4 of International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS
10} - ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’, which dispenses it from the need to present
consolidated financial statements as its ultimate holding company is prepating consolidated
financial statements as per IFRS as issued by the IASB. The registered PDS Limited where the
consolidated financial statements are available is Unit No. 971, Solitaire Corporate Park
Aundheri Ghatkopar Link Road, Andheri East, Mumbai 400093, Maharashtra, India.

(b) Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except where stated
otherwise,

(c) Functional currency and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in United States Dollar (USD) which is the Company’s
functional currency and presentation currencys,

(d) Use of the estimates and judgement
assumptions that affect the application of the Company’s accounting policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these

estimates, Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
lo estimates are recognised prospectively.

® Impairment test: key assumptions underlying  recoverable amounts, including the

* Recognition and measurement of provisions and contingencies: key assumptions about the
likelihood and magnitude of an outflow of resources.



PDS Ventures Limited

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements
Jor the year ended 31 March 2023

2. Basis of preparation (continued)

(d) Use of estimates and judgement (continued)

Determination of functional currency

The determination of functional currency of the Company is critical since recording of
transactions and exchange differences arising are dependent on the functional currency
selected.

Since the Company operates in an international enviromnent and conducts most of its
transaction in foreign currency, the Company has chosen to retain United States Dollar (USD)
as its reporting currency. The Company determines its functional currency based on the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates.

3. Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs)

New standards, interpretations and amendments issued during the year

There has been amendments and interpretations that have become effective for the cuirent year.

The Company has adopted the following new interpretation during the year:
Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - The amendment clarifies that for the purpose of performing the ’10
per cent test” for derecognition of financial labilities — in determining those fees paid net of fees
received, a borrower includes only fees paid or received between the borrower and the lender,
including fees paid or received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s behalf,

"The amendment is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 Jamuary 2022 with
carlier application permitted.

The above new, amended standard and interpretation effective for the financial year do not have
any impact on the Company.

New standards, interpretations and amendments issued but not yet effective

A number of new standards, amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 April 2023 and have not been applied in preparing these financial
statements. Those which may be relevant to the Company are set out below. The Company does not
plan to adopt these standards early. These will be adopted in the period that they become mandatory
unless otherwise indicated:

12



PDS Ventures Limited

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements

3.

Jor the year ended 31 March 2023

Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards {IFRSs)
(continuced)
New standards, interpretations and amendments issued but not yet effective (continued)

Classification of liabilities as current or non-current (Amendments to IAS 1)

Under existing IAS 1 requirements, companies classify a liability as current when they do not have
an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the end of

There is limited guidance on how to determine whether a right has substance and the assessment
may require management to exercise interpretive judgement.

The amendments, as issued in 2020, aim to clarify the requirements on determining whether a
liability is current or non-current, and apply for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023, However, the IASB has subsequently proposed further amendments to IAS 1 and
the deferral of the effective date of the 2020 amendments to no earlier than 1 January 2024,

The directors are currently assessing the impact of this amendment on the financial statements and
do not expect any significant impact on the Company's financial statements.

Definition of accounting estimates (Amendments to IAS 8)

Distinguishing between accounting policies and accounting estimates is important because changes
in accounting policies are generally applied retrospectively, while changes in accounting estimates
are applied prospectively.

The changes to TAS 8 focus entirely on accounting estimates and clarify the following:

* The definition of a change in accounting estimates is replaced with a definition of accounting
estimates.

*  Under the new definition, accounting estimates are “monetary amounts in financial statements
that are subject to measurement uncertainty”.

* Entities develop accounting estimates if accounting policies require items in financial
statements to be measured in a way that involves measurement uncertainty,

* The Board clarified that a change in accounting estimate that results from new information or
new developments is not the correction of an error. In addition, the effects of a change in an
input or a measurement technique used to develop an accounting estimate are changes in
accounting estimates if they do not result from the correction of prior period errors.

* A change in an accounting estimate may affect only the current period’s profit or loss, or the
profit or loss of both the current period and future periods. The effect of the change relating to
the current period is recognised as income or expense in the current period. The effect, if any,
on future periods is recognised as income or expense in those future periods.

13



PDS Ventures Limited

Notes to the financial statements
Jor the year ended 31 December 2022

3

Application of new and revised International  Financial Reporting  Standards
(IFRSs)(continued)

New standards, interpretations and amendments issued but not yet effective (continued)
Definition of accounting estimates (Amendments to IAS 8) (continued)

The effects of changes in inputs and/or measurement fechniques are changes in accounting
estimates. The definition of accounting policies remains unchanged.

The amendments are effective for periods beginning on or afier 1 July 2023, with earlier application
permitted, and will apply prospectively to changes in accounting estimates and changes in
accounting policies occurring on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period in which
the company applies the amendments.

The directors are currently assessing the impact of this amendment on the financial statements and
do not expect any significant impact on the Company's financial statements.

Disclosure Initiative: Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice
Statement 2)

The Board has issued amendments to JAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements and an update to
IFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements to help companies provide useful
accounting policy disclosures. The key amendments to IAS 1 include:

*  requiring companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant
accounting policies;

* several paragraphs are added to explain how an entity can identify material accounting policy
information and to give examplies of when accounting policy information is likely to be
material;

*  clarifying that accounting policies related to immaterial transactions, other events or conditions
are themselves immaterial and as such need not be disclosed; clarifying that not all accounting
policies that relate to material transactions, other events or conditions are themselves material
to a company’s financial statements:

* accounting policy information may be material because of its nature, even if the related
amounts are immaterial;

* accounting policy information is material if users of an entity’s financial statements would need
it to understand other material information in the financial statements; and

* the amendments clarify that if an entity discloses immaterial accounting policy information,
such information shail not obscure material accounting policy information,

The Board also amended IFRS Practice Statement 2 to include guidance and two additional
examples on the application of materiality to accounting policy disclosures. The amendments are
consistent with the refined definition of material. The amendments are effective from 1 July 2023
but may be applied earlier. The directors are currently assessing the impact of this amendment on
the financial statements and do not expect any significant impact on the Company's financial
statements.



PDS Ventures Limited

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements
Jor the year ended 31 March 2023

4. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The Company makes estimates and judgements that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next year. Estimates and Judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, meluding expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Determination of functional currency

The determination of the functional currency of the Company is critical since recording of
transactions and exchange differences arising therefrom are dependent on the functional currency
selected, The directors have considered those factors and have determined that the functional
currency of the Company is the United States Dollar (USD).

Going Concern

In light of the COVID19, management has made an assessment in respect of the entity’s going
concern and concluded that there is no issue for which the Company will no longer be going
concern. Management have made an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. The Company has the resources to continue in business for the foresceable future.
Furthermore, management is not aware of any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt
upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. Therefore, the financial statements
continue to be prepared on the going concern basis.

5. Significant accounting policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods presented in
these financial statements:

(@) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currencies of the
company at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the exchange
rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in
a foreign currency are transiated in the functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair
value was determined. Foreign currency differences are generally recognised in profit or loss.
Non-monetary items that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are not
translated.

However, foreign currency differences arising from the translation of the following items are
recognised in QCI:

= available-for-sale equity investments (except on impairment, I which case foreign currency
differences that have been recognised in OCT are reclassified to profit or loss);

® alinancial liability designated as a hedge of the net investment in a foreign operation to the
extent that the hedge is effective; and '

* qualifying cash flow hedges to the extent that the hedges are effective.

15



PDS Ventures Limited

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements
Jor the year ended 31 March 2023

5. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b} Revenue recognition

(c)

Revenue is recognised as follows:

* Dividend income: when the Company’s right to receive payment is established.
* Interest income: as it accrues (taking into account the effective yield on the assets).

Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that it relates to a business combination, or items directly in equity or in OCI.
Current tax comprises the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year and any
adjustment to the tax payable in respect of previous years. It is measured using tax rates
cnacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Current tax also includes any tax arising
from dividends.

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if certain criteria are met, Deferred tax is
recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax is not recognised:

" temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is
not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss;

" temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and Jjoint
arrangements to the extent that the Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of
the temporary differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foresceable
future; and

* taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill,

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits and deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be used, Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting
date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be
realised; such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves.

Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
they can be used. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to
temporary differences when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or
settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
offset only if certain criteria are met.

16



PDS Ventures Limited

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements
Jor the year ended 31 March 2023

5. Significant accounting policies (continued)

{d) Investmenis in Jointly controlled entities

(e)

The Company’s has interests in Jjoint ventures.

A joint venture is an arrangement in which the Company has joint control, whereby the
Company has rights to the net assets of the arrangement, rather than rights to its assets and
obligations for its liabilities.

The Company has equity accounted its investment in jointly controlled entities.

Financial instruments

Recognition and initial measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument,

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at
FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

Classification and subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost or F VTPL,

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognifion unless the Company
changes its business model for managing financial assets, in which case al] affected financial
assets are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the
business model,

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and
is not designated as at FVTPL:

* It is heid within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and

*" iis contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

Financial assets measured at amortised cost include other receivables and cash and cash
equivalents.

17



PDS Ventures Limited

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements
Jor the year ended 31 March 2023

5. Significant accounting policies (continued)
(e) Financial instruments (continied)
Financial assets - Business model assessment:

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial
asset is held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and
information is provided to management. The information considered includes:

= the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in
practice. These include whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual
interest income, maintain a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the
financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or
realizing cash flows through the sale of the assets;

* how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s
management;

» the risks that affect the performance of the business model {(and the financial assets held
within that business model) and how these risks are managed;

* how managers of the business are compensated — e.g whether compensation is based on the
fair value of the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

" the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated
on a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL.,

Financial assets -Assessment whether contractual cash HNows are solely payments of principal
and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, 'principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset
on initial recognition. 'Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for
the credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of
time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as
well as a profit margin,

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest,
the Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether
the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of
contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment,
the Company considers:

" contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

* terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable-rate features;

* prepayment and extension features; and

* terms that limit the Company's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse
features).
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Notes to and forming part of the financial statements
Jor the year ended 31 March 2023

5. Significant accounting policies {continued)
(¢) Financial instrumenis (continued)

Financial assets - Business model assessment {continued)

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if
the prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the
principal amount outstanding, which may include reasonable compensation for early
termination of the contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a discount or premium
to its contractual par amount, a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that
substantially represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual
interest (which may also include reasonable compensation for early termination) is treated as
consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial
recognition.

Financial assets — Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

[ Financial assets at These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
amortised cost effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment
losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Equity investments | These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
at FVOC(Cl recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly
represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. Other net
gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are never reclassified to
profit or loss,

Financial liabilities — Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability
is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is
designated as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair
value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss.
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

Derecognition
Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from
the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a
transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial
asset are transferred or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset. The
Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised in its statement of
financial position but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
transferred assets. In these cases, the transferred assets are not derecognised.



PDS Ventures Limited

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements

Jor the

year ended 31 March 2023

5. Significant accounting policies (continued)

(e} Financial instrument (continued)

(&)

)

Financial liabilities

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount
extinguished and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed) is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financia] liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement
of financial position when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable
right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Share capital
Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares are classified in equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of
ordinary shares, net of any tax effects, are recognised as a deduction from equity.

Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a result of 3 past event, the Company have a present legal or
construcitve obligation that can be estimated reliably, and jt is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation.

Impairment
Non-derivative financial assets
The Company recognises loss allowances for ECLg on:

- financial assets measured at amortised Cost;

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the
following, which are measured at 12-month ECLs:

- bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life
of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.
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Notes to and forming part of the financial statements
Jor the year ended 31 March 2023

5. Significant accounting policies (continued)
(h) Impairment (continued)
Non-derivative financial assets (continued)

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company's
historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking
information.

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:

- the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without
recourse by the Company to actions such as realising security {if any is held); or
- the financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

The Company considers a debt security to have low credit risk when jts credit risk rating is
equivalent to the globally understood definition of 'investment grade'. The Company considers
this to be Baa3 or higher per (Rating Agency X) or BBB- or higher per (Rating Agency Y).

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possibie default events over the expected life of
a financial instrument.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLg that result from default events that are possible within
the 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument
is less than 12 months),

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period
over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset.

Financial assets not classified as fair value through profit or loss, inciuding an interest in an
equity-accounted investee, are assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there is
objective evidence of impairment,
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Notes to and forming part of the financial statements
Jor the year ended 37 March 2023

5. Signifi

cant accounting policjes {continued)

() Impairment (contim(ed)

Non-derivative Sinancial assets {continued)

Objective evidence that financial assets are impaired incldes:

default or delinquency by a debtor;

restructuring of an amount due to the Company on terms that the Company would not
consider otherwise;

indications that a debtor or issuer will enter bankruptcy;

adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers or issuers;

the disappearance of an active market for a security; or

observable data indicating that there ig a measurable decrease in the expected cash flows
from a group of financja] assets

For an investment in an equity security, objective evidence of impairment inchides 2 significant
or prolonged decline in jts fair value below its cost. The Company considers a decline of 20%,
to be significant and a period of nine months to be prolonged.
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Notes to and forming part of the financial statements
Jor the year ended 31 March 2023

6. Financial instruments -- Fair values and risk management
(@) Accounting classifications and JSair value
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy. It does not include fair value
information for financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fajr value if the carrying

amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value,

31 March 2023

Amortised
cost Total Levell Level 2 Level 3 Total
USD USD USD USD USD USD
Financial assets
not measured at
fair value
Other receivables 344,657 344,657 - - - -
Cash and cash
equivalents 2,568 2,568 / - - - -
347,225 347,225 - - - -
Financial

liabilities not
measured at fair

value

Other payables 11,799 11,799 - - - -
Advance from

holding company 612,065 612,065 - - - -

623,864 623,864 - - - -
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PDS Ventures Limited

Notes to and forming part of the ﬁnancial‘statemcnts
Jor the year ended 31 March 2023

6. Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (continued)
(t) Accounting classifications and fair value (continued)
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial
liabilities, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy. It does not include fair value

information for financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying
amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.

31 March 2022

Amortised
cost Total Levell Level2 Level 3 Total
UsDh UsDh USD UsD UsD UsD
Financial assets not
measured at fair value
Other receivables 346,369 346,369 - - - -
Cash and cash
cquivalents 4,997 4,997 - - - -
351,366 351,366 - - - -
Financial liabilities
not measured
at fair value
Other payables 13,405 13,405 - - - -
Advance from holding
comparny 17,847,065 17,847,065 - - - -
17,860,470 17,860,470 - - - -
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Notes to and forming part of the financial statements
Jor the year ended 31 March 2023

6. Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (continued)

(b) Financial risk management

Introduction and preview

Financial instruments carried on the statement of financial position include other receivables,
cash and cash equivalents, other payables and advance from holding company. The recognition
method adopted is disclosed in the individual policy statement associated with each item. The
most important types of risk are market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

The Company’s activities expose them to a variety of financial risks and those activities involve
the analysis, evaluation, acceptance and management of some degree of risk or combination of
risks. The Company’s aims are thercfore to achieve an appropriate balance between risk and
return and minimise potential adverse effects on the Company’s financial performance.

The Company’s risk management policies are designed to identify and analyse these risks, to
set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor the risks and adherence to limits by
means of reliable and up-to-date information systems. The Company regularly reviews their
risk management policies and systems to reflect changes in markets and emerging best practice.

Risk management is carried out by the Board of directors through board meetings. The
Company provide principles for overall risk management.

Overview

The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:

»  Market risk

»  Credit risk

*  Liquidity risk

Market risk

Market risk represents the potential loss that can be caused by a change in the market value of
financial instruments. The Company’s exposure to market risk is determined by a number of
factors, including interest rates, foreign currency exchange rates and market volatility. The

Company conducts its investment operations in a manner that seeks to exploit the potential
gains in the market, while limiting its exposure to market declines.

(i) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Company has no significant exposure to interest rate risk.
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Notes to and forming part of the financial statements
Jor the year ended 31 March 2023

6. Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (continued)
(b) Financial risk management {continued)
(it} Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the Company might be exposed to exchange rates fluctuations
arising from currencies other than the functional currency which might have a material impact
on the Company’s financial assets and liabilities which are denominated in these currencies. All
of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities are denominated in USD. Consequently, the
Company is not exposed to the risk of foreign currency exchange rates.

Credit risk

Credit risk represents the potential loss that the Company would incur if counter parties fail to
perform pursuant to the terms of their obligations to the Company. The Company limits its
credit risk by carrying out transactions through companies within the group. At the reporting
date, there was no significant concentration of credit risk, The maximum exposure to credit
risk is represented by the carrying amount of cach financial asset in the statement of financial
position. -

Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The
maximum credit risk at the reporting date was:

2023 2022

USD uUsD

Other receivables 344,657 346,369
Cash and cash equivalents 2,568 4,997
347,225 351,366

Expected credit loss assessment
Cash and cash equivalents

The Company’s policy is to maintain its cash balance with a reputed banking institution and to
monitor the placement of cash balances on an ongoing basis. Due to the low credit risk of the
counterparty, the expected credit loss (ECL) was considered to be immaterial, The carrying
amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.

Impairment assessment

Other receivables
2023 2022
USD UsDh
Other receivables 344,657 354,803
Impairment loss - (8,434)
Balance as at 31 March 344,657 346,369
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Notes to and forming part of the financial statements

Sfor the year ended 31 March 2023

6. Financial instruments — Fair values and risk management (continued)

(b) Financial risk management (continued)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as
they fall due. The Company’s approach to manage liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible that
it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its labilities when due, under both normal and
stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damages to the Company’s

reputation.

31 March 2023

Financial liabilities

Other payables

Advance from holding company

31 Mareh 2022

Financial liabilities

Other payables

Advance from holding company

7. Revenue

No revenue was generated during the year under review.,

8. Net finance income/ (costs)

Finance Income
Interest Income

Finance Costs
Interest expense

Net finance income/ (costs)
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Within one One to Total
year five years
UsD USD USD
11,799 - 11,799
612,065 - 612,065
623,864 - 623,864
Within one One to
year five years Total
USD USD USD
13,405 - 13,405
597,065 17,250,000 17,847,065
610,470 17,250,000 17,860,470
2023 2022
uUsDh USD
1,785 1,712
(1,712) (1,785)
73 (73)




PDS Ventures Limited

Notes to and forming part of the financial statements
Jor the year ended 31 March 2023

9. Taxation

The Company holds a Global Business Licence for the purpose of the Financial Services Act 2007
of Mauritius. The Company is liable to tax at the rate of 15% on all its income. Pursuant to the
enactment of the Iinance Act 2018, with effect since 01 January 2019, the deemed foreign tax
credit has phased out since 01 July 2021. Any income derived prior 30 June 2021, will still be
entitled to deemed foreign tax credit of 80% or actual foreign tax credit, whichever is the higher.
Any income derived after 30 June 2021 will be subject to tax at the rate of 15% and would be
entitled to either:

(a) a foreign tax credit equivalent to the actual foreign tax suffered on its foreign income against the
Company’s tax liability arising in Mauritius on such income, or

(b) a partial exemption of 80% applicable to specified income, including but not limited to foreign-
source dividends or interest income, subject to the Company meeting the necessary substance
requirements,

Further, the Company is exempted from income tax in Mauritius on profits or gains arising from the
sale of securities. In addition, there is no withholding tax payable in Mauritius in respect of

payments of dividends to sharcholders or in respect of redemptions or exchanges of shares.

A reconciliation of the actual income tax based on accounting profit and the actual income tax
expense is as follows:

Total tax expense for the year:

2023 2022

USD UsD
Current year income tax - -
Reconciliation of effective taxation

2023 2022

USD USD
Loss before taxation (17,534) (26,487)
Income tax at 15% {2,630) (3,973)
Unauthorised deductions - 1,265
Deferred tax asset not recognised 2,630 2,708

Income tax expenses - -
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10. Investment in joint venture

Investment consists of unquoted shares

Cost:

At 01 April

Additions during the year

At 31 March

Share of loss of equity accounted investee

At 01 April
Movement during the year

At 31 March

Carrying amount

Name of company

Redwood Internet Ventures Limited
Digital Internet Technologies Limited

2023 2022
USD USD
10,000 10,000
10,000 10,000
(10,000) {10,000)
(10,000) {10,000)
Type of  Numberof Country of
shares shares % held incorporation
Equity 5,000 50 Hong Kong
Equity 5,000 50 Hong Kong
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11

12.

Investments in subsidiary

Investments consist of both ordinary and preference shares in subsidiary

(a) Ordinary shares

Cost
At 01 April
Additions during the year

At 31 March

(b) Preference shares

At 01 April

Allotment during the year (from deposit on shares)

Acquisition during the year

At 31 March

0.1% redeemable cumulative preference shares of USD 1 each

Name of company

Subsidiaries

PDS Ventures Limited, Hong Kong  Ordinary

Deposit on shares

Balance at 01 April

Reclassify to preference shares (to investments in subsidiary)

Balance at 31 March

2023 2022
USD UsD
10,000 10,000
10,000 10,000
2023 2022
USD UsD
17,250,000 -
5,600,000 -
22,850,000 -
Type of Number of 2023 2022 Country of
shares shares % held % held incorporation
10,000 100%  100% Hong Kong
2023 2022
USD Ush
17,250,000 17,250,000
(17,250,000) -
- 17,250,000
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13. Other receivables

2023 2022
USD USD
(a) Loan receivable
Al cost 880,709 880,709
Impairment of loan during the year (536,052) (536,052)
Net book value 344,657 344,657
Unsecured, interest free loan with no fixed repayment terms
(b) Prepayments 728 727
(c) Interest Receivable - 1,712
345,385 347,096
14. Stated capital
2023 2022
USD UsD
Issued and fully paid:
1,000,000 ordinary shares of USD 1 each 1,000,000 1,000,000
15,000,000 cumulative redeemable preference shares at
USD 1 each 15,000,000 -

16,000,000 1,000,000

15. Share application monies

2023 2022
USD UsD
Reclassified from non-current liabilities 2,250,060 -
Addition during the year 5,600,000 -
Balance at 31 March 7,850,000 -

Share application monies consist of cumulative redeemable preference shares to Multinational
Textile Group Limited
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16.

17.

Advance from holding company
"(a) Non-current liabilities 2023 2022
USD Ush
Balance at 01 April 17,250,000 17,250,000
Converted into stated capital during the year (15,000,000) -
Reclassify to share application monies during the year (2,250,040) -
Balance at 31 March - 17,250,000

The redeemable cumulative preference shares has been accounted as a liability component because
as per the term sheets repayments are expected any time within the period of 7 years. In addition,
the company also has an obligation to accrue and pay an interest of 0.1 % per annum. (Payable
annually).

(b} Current liabifities 2023 2022
UusD UsD
Unsecured, interest free with no fixed term of repayment. 612,065 597,065
Other payables
2023 2022
USD UsD
Accrued expenses 11,799 13,405
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18.

19.

20.

Related party transactions

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions or if they are
subject to comunoen control.

One director of the Company is deemed to have beneficial interests in the Administration
Agreement between the Company, the Administrator and Secretary.

During the year under review, the Company entered into the following related party transactions.

Nature of transactions 2023 2022
USD UsSD

Related parties:
Digital Internet Technologies Limited Impairment - (8,434)
Multinational Textiles Group Limited Interest accrued - 1,785
Multinational Textiles Group Limited Amount received - 17,275,000
Balances outstanding at 31 March:
Digital Internet Technologies Limited Amount receivable 344,657 344,657
Multinational Textiles Group Limited Amount payable 612,065 17,848,850

Holding and ultimate holding company

The Company is a sub subsidiary of PDS Limited, a Company incorporated in Maharashtra, India,
The ultimate holding Company is PDS Limited, a company incorporated in India with its shares
listed on The National Stock Exchange of India Limited and Bombay Stock Exchange.

Going Concern, Impact Of Covid-19 And Ukrainian —~ Russian War

Impact of COVID-19

The directors continue to monitor the ongoing developments, and its impact on the performance of
the Company. Management has considered the impact of the COVID-19 outbreak on the Company
and has concluded that the pandemic should not have a significant effect on the Company’s

financial position and performance.

The Company continues to engage effectively on its focus areas and its operations are being carried
out normally.
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20. Going Concern, Impact Of Covid-19 And Ukrainian — Russian War (continued)
Impact of Ukrainian - Russian war

On 24 February 2022, the Russian Federation launched a full-scale invasion into Ukraine sovereign
state. The potential impacts from the emerging Ukraine and Russian conflict remain uncertain,
including but not limited to, on global economic conditions, asset valuations, iterest rate
expectations and exchange rates. Although the extent of these impacts has not been assessed at this
stage, currently there is no direct impact on the Company as the Company does not have any
transactions with both Ukraine and Russia.

Going Concern

The Company incurred a loss of USD 17,534 (2022: USD 26,487) for the year ended 31 March
2023. As at that date, the Company had net assets of USD 22,584,089 (2022: USD 248,377) with
its total current liabilities exceeding its total current assets by USD 275,911 (2022: USD 258,377).

The directors have made an assessment of the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern
taking into account all available information about the future including the analysis of the possible
impacts in reation to COVID-19 and Ukraine Russian War, which is at least, but is not limited to,
twelve months from the date of approval of these financial statements and confirm that they have
not identified events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

21, Events after the reporting date

There has been no significant event after the reporting date which in the opinion of the board of
directors requires disclosure in the financial statements.

34



Report of the Directors and Audited Financial Statements
PDS FAR-EAST LIMITED

31 March 2023

CERTIFIED TRUE COPY

ERNST%?‘? m T =Y.

Building a better
working world




PDS FAR-EAST LIMITED

CONTENTS

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
Statement of financial position
Statement of changes in equity
Statement of cash flows

Notes to financial statements

9-33



PDS FAR-EAST LIMITED

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The directors present their report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2023.

Principal activity

The principal activity of the Company is trading of garments. There was no significant change in the '
Company’s principal activity during the year.

Results
The Company’s loss for the year ended 31 March 2023 and its financial position as at that date are set out the
financial statements on pages 5 to 33.

Directors
The directors of the Company during the year were:

Gavurayv Pandey
Krishna Kanodia
Abhishekh Kanoi

In accordance with Company’s articles of association, all directors will retire by rotation and, being eligible,
will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Directors’ interests

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its holding compan